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CI‘REY’ P- (;'-LGQ):

It is essentizl in 2 case of this unusual nature,. tho

0

Jurisdiction. =nd in

&3]

first of its kind I understand in thi
which, especinlly becausc men’s reputatiens are at stake, thatl
every offcrt should be made to give our reasons carly. We
thought it right *¢ give our docision at the end of the submissions

which occupicd six working days,; so that no one would ke kept in
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SusSpense as e our Gecision. Sadly our hopes have not been

regrev the delay in preducing our rcesons,

The plointiffs/respondents sucd Telecommunications of

Jamaica Limiced {TOJ) (the 13+th defendont) and sone

other defendanits including Cable and Wiccless (Wesw

claeven

indies)

Limited the Government of Jamaica tactually the dccountant

]

venerzl) ond olhexr persons being dizectors of T.0.J

Yeeoow. frauG; misrcepresentation and

oi negligence arising in relation

Lo the issuing by che Defendants in
ox cbhout September, 1568 of a
prospecius for the sale of certain
shares in ‘telecommunicnticns of
Jamsica Limiced ang ~lso in

relation o the purchasc in 199¢ by
that company of certain propercies.
The Plaintiffs alse claim damages

on the ground that in addition to
being fraudulent the puichase of

the said prceperties was ulcra vires
the Memorandum of l.seociation of
Telccommunications of Jamaica Limiced
The first Defendant is sued under the
Crown Proceedings act on behalf of
the accountant-Cenerzl, a Cosporation
Sole puisuant co the Crown Property
{Vesting) .ci, which is and was ac
all material times a major share-
holdier in Telecommunications of
vamaica Liamiced and was the owner of
the shares in that company which were
cffered for sale to the public in

the said prospectus.”®

. for -

The above exv.act recites the encorsement on the

plaintiffs® anended wiit. The amended staiement of

claim

contained scre twenty-four paragraphs and some of these will

be dealt with

at a later stage in iLhis judgmenc.

iction was

disconcinued; we understand, against the third defendant

Horace Barber

-

The thirteenth defendant %.0.J. applied to

“{1) in Order determining as o
preliminary issue in :this
action the guesiion vhether
the Plaintiffs are entitled
to maintain in this suit a
cerivative acticn for the
benefit of the Thirteenth
Defendant.

the Court



"{ii} ilternavively. liberty to
file & Lefence to the
Thairteenth Defendant if
necessary.
the matter was heard before Edwards J. by whose order, dated

gt Octoper, 1950 it wos declared that the plaintiffs were

itled to meinvain a derivative action on behalf of the

-~

en
thirteenth defendant. TFrom his judgment, & note of which we
Bave been furnished, it is clear thal he allowed the derivat.ve
action to proceed con the basiz of fraud only. He is recorded
as saying -

".ov..The guestion of fyaud not

ultra virses sheuld be deald
with properly at a Lrial.”

“he thirteenth deicndant being dissatisfied wich that judgment
and order; now appeals to this Court for an order that the
Judge'’s order be set aside and the plaintiffs® derivative action
not be allowed te proceed.

This case is concerned with the guestion - when can a
shareholder suc?

The matter is governed by a rule commonly known as ithe

cvle in Foss v. Harbottle {1043 2 Hare 46l, (7 E.n. 189.

Jenkins,: L.J. in Bdwards v. Halliwell (1680; 2 .11 E.k. loce

at page 10d¢ stated tie rule in this woy -

‘The rule in Foss v. Harbettle,

as I understand it, coles LG no
more than this. firsc the

proper plaintiff in 2n action

in respeci of a wrong clieged to
be done to & company or association
of perscns is, prima facie, the
company Or the assocliation or
persons itself. Secondly, where
the alleged wrong is & tiansaczion
which mighi be made binding on

the company or association and on
all its membeis by & simple
majority of the members no
individual member of the company
is allowad to maint: in an action
in respect of that matier for the
sinple reason that, if 2 mere




"majosity of the membsrs of tho

company or associaticn is 2
favour of whiac has been dorwe,
then cadit guaestio. No wrong

has been cone to the company

wr association and thexe L8

nothing in raspect of ~vhich anyone
can sue. LI, cn the odher hand.

a simple majority of menbers of

the company oy association is
againsc waatc has been done. then
there is no valié reascn why cthe
ccmpany or assocraticon iiself
should not sue. In ny judgmenc,

it is implicit in the rule that

the matter relicd on as
constituting the cause cof act.on
shall be a cause of action properly
belonging to :the gonewral bedy cf
corporatcrs or membors of the
company or asscciation as opposed
ce & cause of action which sonc
individual member can asSsS€rt in

lias own right.'”

'

Broadly speaking therafore; the compony is the proper plaintiff

in an action invelving a dispute wilthin the company. s the

body usually charged with the management of a company, i: is

the board of direcvors who muast initiace acition.

Ciicuiscances
Lo act in the
circumstances
from the rule

as follows:

uc

]

might exuest which might not incline the directors
company ‘s name. There are iour sects of
wirich arve often referred to uis the exceptions

in Foss v. Harboltle {(supral). I would state them

(1} tthen vhe sharcholder (being the
inority complain that the
company 1is zcting ultra vires
or illegally;

(i) waere the sharehclder (being the
minority) scek to have &
resolution ¢f the company in
general meeting declared void on
the greund that it has not been
validly passed c.g. chat the
resolution was one which could
only be passecd by a special
resolutiony;

{(iii) where the. wrong done to the

company, &lso infringes the
pecrsonal rights of v‘he sheare-
ncldesr end if the wrong to cthe
cshareholder couldé noc be reciified
Ly an oxdinavy resclution of the
canpany ;
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(iv) where what has been dcnz

amounts to a fxraud on Lhe

minority and the fraudsters

are themselves in control

of the company.
The effec'. of these exceptions is that a shareholder will be
allowed to sue if what he complains of, could not be validly
effected or ratified by an ordimary cesolu.ion.

The action which the sharcholder brings :n his own
behalf and on behalf of other shaveholders, is noi really on
his or their behalf but on behalf of the company. The
shareholder is acting as & representative of the company. This
action is referred to as a derivative action in recognition of
the fact that the shareholder is suing on behalf of the
company to enforce rignits derived from it. The forms of pleading
require the minority shareholders to aver the formula -

“.v... on behali of therselves and all other shareholders of
+»e..." butt that does not in any way alter the character of ‘he
action. In so far as ithe present plaintiffs sued in their
personal capacities, the allegations pleaded constitute the
personal action. it is right to point out: that both the

derivative and the personal actions were married in this suit.

o

put this course is permissible where the claims arise out of the

Same transaction. Prudential Assurance Co. Ltd v. Lewman

industries Ltd & Orxs. (ile. 2) {1S€0: 2 .11 H.w. 261,

bic. Leo-ihynie submiited, and this was conceded Ly
Mr. Manderson~Jones, that the basis of fraud pleaded in the
derivative action was contained in paragraphs 17 to 24 of the

amended statemenc of claim. These are (uoted hereunder -
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in os abouv the month or
Octobes.; .98 the Pirst
Defendant,; the Lecond Defendant,
the Director Defendants and

the Twelfilh Defendanc caused
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Litated to purchase from the
said Developmenc Pioperties
Limited the said land comprised
in Certificates of Ticles
regrstered at Volume 118C Folio
33% and Volume 1003 Folio 2
the Register Book of Ti:les
amounting ve some 1. acres with
buildings thereon at a price of
approximately FORTY-HINE MILLIOW
Ul dUNHDRED ZWD EiGHTY-NINE
THOUSEHD TWO HUWDRED DOLL-RE
($49,109,20G.80).

he said price of $49,L09.206.00
id for the lanc was grossly in
of professional valuations
crue market value,

The First and Second Defendantis,

the Director Defendants anc ths
Twelfth Defendant all fully well knew
that the land was not wor:h or
valued ai che price paid for it or
Jid not honescly belicve that it was
or acted in reckless disregavd of
whether 1t was or was not and
conspi.ed together to have the
company purchase the said land at a
grossly :nflaced piice as a
conseguence whereof Telecommunications
cf Jamaice Limited has suffered
considerable loss and damage.

PARTICULARS

Uifference between

contract price and

macket price = $30,U0u,300-u0
(Estimated)

Purchaser’s cos. of

transfes 3.05G.C80.00
{Zstimated;

Purchasers Attorneys

fees 1,06G6,00G.00

.U
(Estimated)
$34,000,C006.0C

-

v
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The purchase of the properi.es
and at the price aforesaid is
ultra vires the objucts of the
Memorandum of Association of
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited particularly insofai as
it is expressly declared therein
cthat the company shall carxy on
its business in accordance with
commercial principles which were
manifestly absunt in the said
pu.chase and also insofar as

the properties were not necessary
for, cannot be convenienily used
with and cannot enhance the
value of any cther property of
the company.

The aforesaid conduct of the First
and Second Defendants. of the
Director Defendanw.s and the

Twelfth Defendant completely dis-
regarded the interest of
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited and of the Plaintiffs and
constituted oppiessive and
unconscionable conducit towazds them.

Furiher and/or in che alternadcive
the saic¢ loss and damage arising
frow the purchase of the propertcies
al a grossly inflated price was
caused by the negligence of the
Defendant Directors and of the
Twelfth Defendant.

PARTICULARS

{1) Failing co pay a reasonable
price or to forego the
gurchase and look for more
reasonably priced land;

(i1} Failing o cbtain any o
an adequate number of
professional viluations of
the properties;

{ii.) Alternatively, disregarding
or falling to rely cn oxr on
che majority of the
professional valuations
obtained;

-~
ke
<

S

valuations of the properties
or on their own assumptions
as to the proper price to be
pa:d for it.

Relying on theis own uninformed
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23, The Fiirst and ESecond Defendants

o

4

©

oy their absolute control over
che vores of Telecommunications
of Jamaica Limited and through
the Defendani Directors and the
Twelfth Defendanc who azxe appointed
by them completely overwhelm the
Plaintiffs and have refused and/
or threaten to refuse to pursue
this action against chemselves
and their Directors in that
company ‘s name.

in the premises the Defendants are
jeintly and severally liable uo
che Plaintiffs.

Edwards ¢ was sequired at the hearing of cthe summons before hin

tc determine,

ag a preliminacy

ssue,; whether the plaintiff was

[N

entitled to maincain the derivailive accien against the defendants.

in Prudential Assurance Co. Lid. v. Newman Industries Lid. & Ors.

{18321 1 ®11 E.

Court of

appeal

it

R. 354 at p. 363 the following statement by the
(Civil Divisicn) sanc:iions :this procedure -

sesmsavee LN Our view, whaceve. may be
the properly <efined boundarics of the
exception vo the rule, the plaintiff
ought at least to be required hefore
proceeding with his action Lo escablish
a prima facie case (i) thauv the
company 15 entitled o the relief
clainmed and (ii} that the action talls
within the proper bouncaries cf che
exception ¢o the .ule in

Foss v. fHarbottle.”

The procedure for the decermination of thus preliminary issue

is not

apressly governed by any provision in the Civil Procedu:e

Code butl secticon 323 thereof may be prayed in aid, It states as

follows

-

. Ji it appews to the Court or a
sudge,. *hat there Iis, in any cause
ci wmatter a guescion of law, which
it would be convenienc to have
decided before any evidence is
given oi any question or issue of
fact is tried, or before any
refercnce is made to an arbitracor,
che Couri or Judge may make an
crder accordingly, and may direct
such guestion of law to bo raised
for the opirion of the Zourt,
either by special case; or in such
other manner as the Ccurt oi Judge
mnay deen expadient; and all such
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“furcher proceedings as the decision
of such question of law may iLender
unnecessary may thereupon be scayed.'

The current practice in the United Kingdom is governed by
0.15/1%z/% which rcads -

“tihere plaintiffs sue as representative
plaintiifs In a minoricy shareholders
or Gerivacive action, ithe couri ought
to cetermine, as a preliminary issue.
whether they are encitled so to sue
and whather the company was in facu
under Jhe conirol of those alleged to
have practised a fraud on it before
“he court proceeded e hear the main
Qerivative action itself.”

Seeing that the Civil Procecdurce iode does not contain this
pirovision; secwion 26 of the Code may properly be invoked:

“$C€y¥. Where no other provision is
expressly made by Law or by
Rules of Cour: the procedure
and practice for the time being
of the Supreme Court of
Judicature in Englané shall, so
fav as applicable, be followed,

"

csscenvun

Edwards J. was not unaware of his obligations. relevant
auchorities weie ciced to him. On any fair reading <f his
judgment, he ruled that the derivative action was maintainable
because fraud had been cstablished. He rejected any basis of
ultra viree acts on the part cf the defendants or any of them.
As to Lhis, he expressed himself thus -

o

< spent some time agonizing and
found first that the purchase of
ithe land wacs nct ulitra vires.”

There has been no appeal by the plaintiffs wyainst this finding
against them and therefore,. I need say nc more about that aspect
of the case exzcept that the judge came to che right conclusion,
He did not expuressly deal with negligence ané he did not appear
to allow the action to proceed on that ground. & ihink this
Court is in the sane position as he was to deiermine whether a

prima facie case exiscs on this ground. Thevafore, to return that
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issue o the judge for wdjudicacion would be wasteful of
judicial time, would lead toc increased costs, and would only
produce an unnecessary multiplicity of hearings.
Negligence may be a basis for maintaining a derivative
action, but nou every act of negligence will justify such an

action by minosity shaveholders. In Alexander v. Aucomatic

Telephone Co. 11504, 2 Ch. 5¢ Lindley M.X. at pages Go, C7

made this point -

# ¢ he Court of Chancexy has always
exacted from directors the
cbservance of good faivh towards
their shareholders cnd towards
those who take shares from the
company and become co-adventurers
with themselves and others who
may join them. The maxim ‘Caveat
cmpeos® has no applicaticn to
such cases, and directors who 50
usce their powers as to obtain
benefits for themselves at the
cipense of the shareholders,
without informing them of the fact,
cannot retain those renefits and
nmust account for them to the
company, so that all “he share-
holders may participate in them.'

i

The case of Daniels v. Daniels [1578; Z 311 E.R. 69 is relevant

although the facts involve a sale at an uncervalve. :n ihe
instant case the pleadings alleged purchase at an overvalue. Thc
facts from the case are contained in tchis excract from the head-
ncte -

"The plaintiffs were minority snare-
holders in the third defendanc

('"the compiny®}. The first and
second defendants were majority
sharcholders and directors of the
company. ZIn October 1970 the

company sold cercain lana tc the
sccond defzndant for £4,250 on the
instructions of the first and second
defendants as disectors. .n 1974

the land was scld by the seconc
defendant. for £12G,00C. The
plaintiffs brought an aclicn against
the defendants alleging that the
price at which the land had been sold
to Lhe sccond defendant wzs well below
its market value and that the firsc
and seocord defendante Inaew that that
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“ijes so, but had pu.sported Lo adocpi the
probate value of the land althougn a
probate value was usually much less
than the open market value. The
defendancs applied co sciile out the
statemerc of claim as disclosing no
reasonable cause of action since it
did not acliege fraué or any other
ground chat would justify an action
by nincriiy shareholders against the
majority for damage caused to the
company .

vempleman J. made the following comment. at page 35 -

"The authcrities which deal with
simple fraud on the one hand and
grose negligence on the cther do
not cover the situation which
arises whewe, without fraud, che
directors and majority shareholders
are guilty of a breach of duty which
chey owe to the company, and that
Lreach of duty not only haras the
company but benefits cthe directors.
In that case it seems to me that
different considcrations apply. If
minority shareholders can sue 1if
there is fraud, I see no reason Wiy
they cannct sue where the action of
the majority and the cireciors,
though withour fraud, confers sSone
benefit con those directors and
majority shareholders themsclves.
it would seem to me gquite monsirous
particularly as fraud is so harc to
plead ana difficult to prove; if the
confines of the exception ©o
Foss v. Harbottle [184¢3] I Hare £l
were drawn $c narrowly that directors
could make a profil ouv of their
NEGligence ..-ceevoveens’

’

in Pavlides v. Jensen & Crs. 1185385 2 5Hl1l E.R. 518, where the

plaintiffs alleged cthat the sale was grossly negligent because
it was at an undervaluec, Danchwerts J. heid thac the action

at page 523 -

{

was not maincainable. le reasoned thu

“On the facts of tle present case;
the sale of the company’s mine was
not beyond the powers of the
company, and it is not alleged to
be ultra vi.es. “Therc is re
allegation of fraué ou the part of
the directors or appropriation of
assets of the company by the
majority shaveholders in fraud of
the minority. It was cpen to the
company, on the resolution of a
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“majority of tlie shareholders, to
sell the mine at a price decided
by the company in that manner, and

it was open to the company by a

vote of the majority to decide

:£f the directors by their
negligence or ecror of judgment
had secld the company’s nine at

an uncervalue, proceedirgs should
not be taken by the company

that.

againsc the ClreCiCrS. ccvssceass

L

These authoritics lead me to the view that unless the

preach of duty bencfits the divectors or some of them, then the

negligence will be regarded as a problem of internal management

or racher mismanagementc.

Thus theie must be some breach of duvy

involving impropriety which can be ascribed to ihe management.

With respect to its internal management, a company may have to

live with foolish directors or an a.miable set of lunatics but

rneither their folly ner lunacy gives minority sacreholders a

basis for a derivative action.

In the instant case, the negligence vas pleaded in

paragraph 22z in this manner -

22,

Further and/or in whe alternal.ive
the said loss and damage arising
from the nurchace of cthe

properties at a grossly inflated
price was caused by the negligence
of the Defendant Llirectors and of
Lhe Twelfth Defendant.

PARTICULARS

(i) Feiling to pay = r2azonable
poice or to feorego ihe
purchase and looik four more
reasonally priced land,

(i1} Failing te obtain any or
an adeqgudate number of
professional valuations of
the properiies,

—~
}.l

.
-
S~

aliernatively. disregarding

or failing to cely on or on

the majority of the profession-
“1 valuations obtained;

{iv} Relying on thei: own uninformed
valuations of the picoperties
or on thz2ir own assumpticns as
to the proper price to Le paid
for it."



The negligence pleaded in iy view,; refers to and involves a
management decision. That is not a gquestion for the Court;
that is a quesiion which calls for business judgment. There

is no guestion bui that the appellant had, by its memorandun
and articles of association, the powei Lo purchase property for
its business and the price paid cn a purchase of property was

a bona fide exercise of its poewers. Lt was Loxd Wilberforce

who said in Howard Smith Ltd v. Ampol Petrolem Litd {1974 2_C.

G21 at p. €32 -

“There is no appcal on merits from

nmanagement decisiong to courts of

law; nor will couris of law assume

€0 act as a kind of supervisory

board over decisions within tche

powers of management honestly

arrived at."
The Court will not interfere in such maiters. The allegations
contained in the averments ar paragraph ZZ of the amended
statement of claim do not make any allegation of impropriety
wvhatever. There is no suggestion in any shape or form of any
benefit to any director of the ccornpany. The conclusion is
inevitable therefore that the derivacive action which the juage
permitted to be maintained, could not proceed on the basis of
the negligence pleaded in the amended stalement of clain.

Theire remains only the guestion of fraud. I caw now

refer to paragraphs 17-19 of the amended s:ztement of claim
which Ms. Manderson-Jones concended, contained the allegacion
of fraud. An examination will show that so far as paragraph
X7 went, it alleged that all the defendants except the 10th
Defendant caused the appellant to purchase property at a price
of $49.13% million dollars. Paragraph 13 alleyed that the

price was in excess of professional valuations and paragraph 1.9

allegea -
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(92

(1) that the defendants knew the
price was excessive;

(ii) did not honestly believe it
was worih the sum paid or <id
not case whact was the value;

{iii) conspired tcgether to purchase
at an ove.svalue,

The learned judge in dealing wiih the guestion of fraugd

“There is a gnestion of who should
pay transfe: tax, and there is a
veiled suggestion of fraud on che
MAnOority .,..ueaou.”

He ended his judgment in the following terms -

“The guesiion is whether the Plaintiffs
are entitled to continue this matcer.

L come to the conclusion with a great
deal of difficulty, that at this scage,
& question cf fiaud is alleged by thc
Plaintiffs. They should be entitled

Lo maintain a derivative action for the
Penefit of the Thirteenth Defencantc.

-

221l we have here are zllegations. I
think that it would comz within the
exception to the rule in

FOSS V. HAREOTTLE. The guestion of
fraud not ulira vires should be dealt
with propercly at a trial. This matter
should proceed to trial so chat the
matter can be resclved, Fraud is
alleged, all directoxrs concerned are
involved oss parcies to the aciion.”

It is plain; from what he said, +that he had before hinm
the several affidavits, including among olhers, affidavits filed
by Mr. Hectoz Bernard who deposed on behals of the plaintiffs and
by Mr. ¥William Bertram on behalf of 7.0.J. The judge required
this matecrial to decide whethe. the plaintiffs had established a
prima facie case that the action fell within the exceptions :to

the rule in Foss v. Harbottle (supra). Before dealing with this

material however I desire to make twoe comments regarding first,
the pleadings as to firaud and secondly, regarding Mr. Bernard's

affidavit.



With regard to the pleacings, it is a well known rule
that if fraud is being pleaded,; particulars thereof nmust be
given. Section 170 (1} of the Civil Procedure Code provides
as follows -

“170. (1) In all cases in which the
pariy pleading relies oo any
nisrepresentcad ‘on, fraud, breach
of trust; wilful default or
undue influence, and in all
other cases in which particulars
may be necessary beyend such as
are exemplified in the Forms
aforesaid, particulars (with
dates and items if necessary)
shall be stated in the pleading:"

Paragraph 19 which 1 repeat clearly breached this rule but
Mr. Manderson-Jones not lacking confidence in his pleadings,
maintained that frauu was adequacely particularised:

"19. The first and Second Dcfendants,
the Direcior Dcefendants and the
Twelfth Defendant all fully well
inew that the land was not worth
or valued at the price paid for it
or did not nonestly believe that
it was cor acted in reckless dis-
regaird of whether 1L was or was
notz and conspired together to have
the company purchase the said land
at a grossly inflated price as a
conseguence vherecof Telecommunications
of Jamaica Limited has suffered
considerable loss and camage.

PARTICULARS

Difference Letwecen coniract
price and mavket price = $30,200,6C6.905
{Estimated)

Purchaser's costs of

.vansfex 2,000,500.00
(Cstimated)

Purchasers Attorney's

fees 1.606,000.00
{(Estimated)

$34,000,000.00

ot

Nothing therein stated amounted in my view. to fraud. The
pleadings contained no avermenti that there was any benefii to

any of the defendants,
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Fraud in vhis regard; means an abuse cf power, that is,
the misuse of a fiduciary position which injures the company.

Lord Davey in Burland v. EBarle (1902; A.C. €3 at page 93

illustrated this meaning of fraud when he said -

“..s... the cases in which the minority
can maintain such an action are, there-
fore confined to those in which the acts
complained of are of a fraudulent
characcer or beyond the powcrs of the
company. £ familiar example is where the
majority are endeavouring directly or
indirectly to appropiriate to themselves
money, property, or advantages which
belong to the company, or in which the
other shareholders are entitled to
participate, ........"

Templeman J. (as he then was) in Daniels v. Daniels (supra) at

page 9% gave a number of examples -

eesceseseo The principle which wmay be
gleaned from Alexander v. Automatic
Telephone Co {1900; 2 Ch 50 (directoxrs
benefiting themselves) from

Coke v. Deeks (1516} 1 A.C. 554, {[151¢-
177 211 ©.R. Rep. 25 (directors
Giverting business in their own favour)
and freom dicta in Pavlides v. Jensen
{19561 2 A1l E.R. 518 11956; Ch. 565
(directors nppropriating assets of the
company;) is that 2 minority shareholder
who has no other remedy may suc whese
directors use their powers intentionally
or unintentionally, fraudulently or
negligently in a manner which benefits
themselves at the expense of the company...”

So far as paragraph 1% of the pleadings went, it could
ex facie, charitably be interpreted as suggesting that the
defendants were not aciing in the best interests of thie company
because they purchased the property reci.lessly at an inflated
value,; and conspired togetner to doc so. However, no overt acts
of this conspiracy were particularised as reguired by the Civil
Procedure Code. Mr. HManderson-Jones' argument that the mere
averment of a conspiracy, for example to puichase at an overvalue,
constitutes fraud is, I fear, ill-conceived. The conspiracy
must be to benefit the directors, to Qivert business in theirx

own favour oi appropsiating assets of the company or some act of
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a fraudulent character. The auchorities to which I have
referred make that perfectly plain.

The othes comment which I foreshadowed, relates to these
affidavits. An affidavit 1s evidence in writing. It speaks to
the personal knowledge of the deponent. Sce section 408 Civil
Procedure Code which provides -

"%08. Affidavit shall be confined to

such facts as the witness is

able of his own knowledge to

prove, exceplt that on interlocu-~

tory proceedings or with leave

under section 2724 or section 367

of this law an affidavit may

contain statementis of inforwation

and belief with the scurces and

grounds thereof.”
Arguments of the deponent are therefore impermissible. Hearsay
evidence is only permissible if the source and yrounds thereof,
are stated. HMr. pernard‘s affidavit is defective in those
respects. 1t also contains assertions of facts. but no evidence
to substantiate these assertions. That limited the material
which the judge below could have considered or for that matter.
which we ourselves are entitled to take into account. Illustrations
of these defecits appear hereafter.

The relevant details of the purchase aboul which the
plaintiffs complain, appear in the affidavit of Mr. Bertram.
T.0.J. was formed he stated, for the purpose of implemencing a
jeint venture between the Government of Jamaica and Cable and
Wireless (West Indies) Limited with the object of acguiring
Jamintel and the Jamaica Telephone Company Limited (J.T.C.),
J.T.C. had obtained reports preparcd by Cable and Vireless PLC
of the United Kingdom to assesg the needs of J.T.C. One of the

recommendations was the acguisition of a suitably sized area as

(o]

a telephone service cencre. fThes reporcs were presented to a
Board Meeting of J.T.C. held ZSth August, 158§. Present were the

4th, S5th, 1Cth, ilth, and 12th defendancs. The twelfth .defendant
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declared his indirect interest bLecause the sites at Wewport West
and Washington Boulevard which were recommended were cwned by
Development Properties Limited; a company of which he was a
director and which itself was owned 3y another company - Industcrial
Commercial Developments Limited in which he was a shareholder and
a director. The Board requesiew an engineering appraisal of the
Newport West site, that the company’s interest in the properties
be communicated to the owner and that alternative sites be
presented.

Pursuant to the directives of the Zoard, negotiations
between the management team began wiith the owners of both sites.
At some point in the negotiations, *the owners had reduced their
asking price to §$£49 KMillion net. The J.T.C. Board gave its
approval for the properties to be purchased at a figure not
exceeding $46 Million net. It was agreed that that decision
should be put to the 7.0.J. Board for ratification. That
ratification came at a meeting on the same date. Present were
the 6th, 7th, %th and iICth defendants., The twelfth defendant
withdrew. The properties wece purchased in December 1588 at a
price of $46 Million net. A new Board of Directors for T.0.J.
was subseqguently appointecd by the sharehclders. That newly
constituted Board on 2nd July, 1950 re-affirmed and adopted the
decisions of the previous EBoard approving the acguisition of the
properties.

The price actually received by the owners was $4¢ Million
net but that as micht well be appreciated, did not represent the
considecation for the properties. The agreement for sale shows
that the purchase money was stated to be $49,1€9,2C0.00. A
receipt reflecting the payment of ¢iransfer tax was exhibited
showing 53.6 Million representing 7.5 percent of the consideracvion.

To make allegations of Eraud may be & compacatively simple

exercise, but its proof is not to be undertaken laightly. This
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leads me to examine the affidavits deposed to by Mr. Bernard.

i can now examine the plaintiffs' material. Mr. Dernard's
affidavit contained an allegation of some breach of section 1§
of the Transfer Tax Act which was committed by certain
unspecified defendants. fThere were no averments in the pleadings
which could allow this evidence to be adduced. The breach
alleged was that the transferee had not paid the Transfer Tax
as required by section 16 {4) of the Zet. %The offence which is

created by section 1¢ {5) is in the following terms -

"a

18, (1-4A) (iiuiinerennenonnnnnnnnnnn.
{53) Every transferec who contravenes
the requirement to make any payment
under subsection (<) shall be guilty
¢f an offence against this Act. "

Plainly the offence created, is the failure by the transferee to
pay the appropriate tax to the Commissioner of Stamp Duties.
Mr. William Rertram, the senior Vice President Finance and
Secretary of T.0.J. exhibited a receipt from the Stamp
Commissioner as procf of payment of the relevant tax liability.
The effect of this is that there was no evidence of a
contravention of the Zict by the directors {the ransferee).

Then there were paragraphs asserting that the purchase price
was false or misleading. Paragraph 13 states as follows:

“13. THAT likewise the statement in
paragraph 21 of the Affidavit
sworn to by WILLIAM WILBERFORCE
BERTR&M on 7th August, 1990, that
“the sum of $49,16%,2006.60......
was within the authority conferred
to negotiate for a price of $4§
million net of costs® is manifestly
false and misleading as $49,139,200.00
is the WET price stated in the
Transfer and on the Certificate of
Title of which William Wilberforce
Bertiram was aware or ought to have
been aware and which, curiously enough
are not exhibited 1o his affidavit.
Moreover, ihe seventeen-page Affidavit
of William Wilberforce Bertram
interestingly fails 1o state the
price whether net or yross actually
paid for the properiies and the breaki-
down of ihe price, if gross,®
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This is plainly argument, not evidence of any fact, For present
purposes, it is whclly incapable of being subsumed under any head
of liability.

Thereafter followed a number of paragraphs of arguments to
show that the price paid was in excess of the average valuations
submitted by the three professional valuators required to submit
their opinions. On that basis, in paragraph 18, Mr., Bernard
came to the conclusion of overvalue. He ceposed as follows -

"18. THAT the properiies were therefore

purchased at a considerable over-

value of which all Defendants were

fully aware at the time the purchase

vas made.”
Then in paragraph 22 a charge was made against the President of
T.0.J. Mr. Chantrelle. hat was alleged against him was that -
"he had knowingly and falsely represented himself to be signing
as a Director that no seal was affixed.” This was wholly false
because Mr. Chantielle was a director and had preperly signed the
instrument of transfer as such and the common seal had been duly
affixed. in drafting the affidavit in these terms, the attorney
on the reccrd for the plaintiffs Mr. Manderson-Jones, was guilty
of the greatest irresponsibility, for he should have made the most
careful check to ensure he had his facts right before causing such
a disgraceful statement co be made in MNr. Bernard's affidavit. He
did apologize to us in open Court but it must be said the damage had
already been done. Hothing in the remaining paragraphs, {(and in
total there were some 49 paragraphs including guotations and
sub paragraphs) contained any evidence whatsoever capable of
supporting the averments of “"fraud® in paragraph 19 of the amended
statement of claim,

It was necessary to undertake this examination to
demonstrate the complete absence of any relevant material. And

at the end of the day, the pleadings not having alleged fraud in
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the sense I have adumbrated, it is not perhaps surprising
that this prolix and argumentative affidavit, provided no
material whatever o mount an attack on the ground of fraud
against any of the defendants.

Since the plaintiff's personal action can nevertheless
be maintained against the defendants; I do not think it is
necessary to consider the amorphous allegations which relate
to each individual defendant in that regard. The only
allegation of impropriety viz, that against Mr. Chantrelle
which found itself in an affidavit was entirely without
foundation. The conclusion at which I have arrived .did not
come about as has been suggested in some guarters because there
were ranged against a solitary inexperienced attorney, a number
of eminent Queens Counsel, but because the action he initlated.
was wholly misconceived.

If there is existing evidence of impropriety which has
resulted in benefit to any director, that evidence has not
been forthcoming. Allegations of fraud, ought not to be made
lightly and it is not fraud because a company purchases
property from a company of one of its own directors ai a price
in excess of the average of three valuation figures. The
question must be whether the price paid was that which a
willing purchaser would pay to a willing buyer. In this case,
the figure paid was less than the asking price. Moreover,
where the evidence is clear that the director concerned
declared his interest, took no part in any discussion at Board
meetings on the matter and received no Board papers on the
matter; it is scandalous in the absence of any evidence whatever

to the contrary, to impute impropriety or other mala fides to

him as Hr. Bernard suggested in his affidavit. Paragraph 26
is an example of the soirt of scandalous material which section
408 of the Civil Procedure Coda forbids. It was in the following

form -
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#26., Furthermore, that the Twelfth

Defendant may have left the EBoard
Room of the Thirteenth Defendant
does net mean that he also left

R the Zoard Rooms of Industrial
Commercial Developnents Limited
or of Development Properties
Limited. Hor does his leaving the
Joard Room mean that he did not
continue to have unrestricted
access to information; including
Eoard papers, and to wield
iniluence over the management and
the Loard of the Thirtveenth
Lefendant in connection with the
transaction for the purchase of the
properties.”

I have said enough to show that neither the pleadings nar
the 2ffidavits of Mr. Bernard provide a scintilla or a soupcon
of evidence of fraud. The learned judge having found a 'veiled
suggestion of fraud,' was in error when he concluded on that
footing that "a guestion of fraud is alleged by the plaintiffs
they were entitled to maintain a derivative action." Having
also said ~ "all we have here are allegations,” he should have
been altered to his functions in respect of the preliminary
issue, namely, that he could not decide the issue on mere
allegations but that he was reguired to satisfy himself that a

prima facie case had been established. Prudential Assurance Co.

Ltd. v. Newman indusiries Ltd & Ors. (supra) at page 365. That

is enough; in my view to disposeof this appeal.
Before parting with this case; 1 am constrained to deal
with a matter of profound importance which occurred in the course
of the hearing.
Afver the matter was called on, I intimated to counsel
appearing befcre the Court, that each mcmber of the Couri was
a shareholder in the thirteenth defendant company. It could
be said we declared interest - our purpose was a negative one,
to prevent or forestall rumour, gosesip and uninformed talk. But

for Mr. Manderson-Jones there was not a disentient voice with
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respect to the Court’s composition. He stated that he objected
to the Court on the basis of bias - in that the members of the
Court owned shares in the thirteenth defendant's company. We
overruled his chijection and the appeal proper began.

Sadly we are not in the position of the English Court of

Appeal when Lexrd Denning in Bromley London Borough Council v.

Greater London Council and Another {1882] 1 A1l E.R., 129 at

page 131 could speak with confidence when he stated the position
in England thus -

At the outset I would say that all
three members of this court are
interested on all sides. e are all
fare-paying passengers on the tubes
and buses and benefit from the 25%
cut in fares, My wife and I also have
the benefit of senior citizens to
travel free. We are all ratepayvers
in the area of Greater London and have
to pay the increase rates wmposed by
the supplementary precept. lio
objection is taken by any party to
our hearing the case. Any Court of
Appeal would be likewise placed.®

We are not likewise similarly placed.
Subsequently, however pir. Leo-Rhynie, ¢.C. supported by
his colleagues brought to our attention, the old case of

Dymes v. Grand Junction Canal {1852} 3 H.L.C. 759. I called

their attention co R. v. Mulvihull {1950, 1 All B.R. 4356 and

invited counsel to assist us by any submissions they cared to
make on the subject. I am much indebted to counsel who greatly
assisted us.

Judicial impartiality is undoubtedly an essential element
in the administration of justice, hence the rule that no man
should be a judge in his own cause. it is a translation of a
latin maxim -~ "nemo judex in re sua."® This rule against bias
has been applied extensively over the years against inferior
tribunals whether of justices or magistrates ox other

administrative bodies through the prerogative remedy of
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certiorari. 2As this remedy is not available against superior
Courts,; it is perhaps not surprising that there are few cases
involving those Courts. One of these and the case mosit often

referred to, is Dymes v. Grand Junction Canal {1852] 3 H.L.C.

759 which suggests that the rule applies to courts no matter how
august their status. Iin that case; Lord Cottenham L.C. in a
Chancery suit had affirmed a number of decrees made by the
Vice~Chancellor in favour of a canal company in which the
Lord Chancellor was a shareholder. Lord Cottenham’s decrees
were set aside by the House of Lords by reason of his pecuniaxy
interest and the House of Lords itself considered the appeal on
its merits and affirmed the decrees of the Vice-Chancellor.

it is, I think, important to understand this case in the
context of i£s times. In 1852, at the time of this decision

the principle in Salomon v. Salomon & Co {18B$7] A.C. 22 of a

corporate peirsonality had not been developed or appreciated.

it cexrtainly was not then appreciated thact a company upon
incorporation becomes a legal entity separate and distinct from
its members. 1In the state that the law then stood, it was an
easy step to hold that a shareholder owned the business which
the company ran. %hus.it could be and was held by the trial
judge and the Court of Appeal that the company formed was a
nere sham and an “alias;" agent, trustee or nominee for Salomon
who remained the real proprietor of the business. The decision
of the House cf Lord in that case settlied the concept of a
corporate personality.

But even before 18%7, the year of Salomon v. Salomon {(supra) ;

the view that becausz a judge might have shares in a company
which was involved in litigation, disqualified him from
participating in the hearing, was being seriously cuestioned.

in London and North-Western Railway Co. v. Lindsay [1856]

3 McQueen's Appeal 99 which was a case before the House of Lorxds,
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Lord Cranworth, L.C. intimated to the Bar that a member of
the Houss, Lord Wensleydale would not be present because he
was a shareholder in the Railway Company. There followed this

exchange between Bench and Bar -

"Mr. Attorney General: 8Sir R. RPethell

I very much regret it, my Lords.

Assent on my part,. as representing the
Railway Company, would not be of any
avail, but I rather apprehend that my
learned friends who appear for the
Respondent; if they had been here, would
have joined with me in that regret.

! L ha Ox: I nmust say that

in the present state of our social
relations, when almost everybedy has
shares in some or other of these companies,
to suppose that that disqualifies then
from discharging judicial functions in
cases in which those companies are
concerned is a very dangerous doctrine.

Mr., Atlcrney General: Certainly,

my Lord; I urged that very strongly in

a case that arose in this House some
years ago Grand Junction Railway v. Dymes

Lord Urougham: You mean in the case in
which Lord Cotienham was a shareholder.

Mr. Attorney General: VYes, ny Lord; but

i am sorry to say that the rule in that
case was carried to a very great extent.

~n former times it will be remembered that
it was not the rule acted upon. Lord Eldon
was a holder of Bank stock, but he never
for a moment considered that he was
disqualified from adjudicating in a case

in which the Bank was concernec: but at
bresent the law so stands, that I am
afraid it would require the intexrference of
the Legislature.

Lord Brougham: Even if the consent of the
parties were given,

The Lord Chancellor: i do not think that

any legislative interference can be necessary
in the case of appeals to this House, for
according to that rule, in almost every case
the decision must be had; because the judgment
is the judgment of the House itself, and

there is, we may depend upon it, in every
case some one Poor or other who has an
interest in the case where a large company

is concerned.”®




If I might leap the century and three decades since that

case, we come to R v. Mulvihull [{18S50] 1 &11 E.R. 436, a

Gecision of the English Court of Appeal {Criminal Division).
The fact that this was a criminal case, is not in my view,
of any significance because the rule as to bias remains the
same whatever the nature of the case. There the appellant
was charged with and convicted of conspiracy to rob, the
case against him being that he had actually been involved in
six robberies and one attempted robbery at premises belonging
to various banks and building societies. One of the offences
had taken place at a branch of a bank in which, at the time
of the trial, the trial judge owned 1,¢50 shares. The judge
did not disclose his shareholding in open court. The appeal
was taken on the ground that, had he known of the judge's
shareholding the appellant would have objected to his
conducting the trial. The appeal was dismissed, the court
holding that where the judge had no direct pecuniary interest
in the outcome but had instead an interest which fell short
of being a direct pecuniary interest, thecre was no presumption
of bias. Instead the test was whether a reasonable and fair-
minded peirson, sitting in court at the trial and knowing that
the trial judge held 1,650 shares in one of the banks which
the appellant was said to have robbed, would not reasonably
have entertained such a suspicion, or would not have acted
reasonably if he had.

in my judgment, the rule against bias in modern form
means that no one may be a judge in a cause in which he has

a direct pecuniary interest in the outcome of the case. This

interest irrespective of its extent acts as an automatic

disqualification because the law then assumes bias.



R. v. Camborne Justices ex parte Pearce i1954] 2 All E.R. 850.

The interest which a shareholder has in a company was

explained in Prudential Assurance Co. v. Newman Industries

& Ors. (Wo. 2) (supra) (C.A.) at page 365 -

"The plaintiff's shares are merely a

right of participaticn in the company

on the terms of the articles of

association. The shares themselves,

his right of participation, are not

directly affected by the wrongdoing.

The plaintiff still holds all the

shares as his own absolutely

unincumbered property.”
If a wrong is done to the company, the shareholder does not
suffer any personal loss. The loss is through the company in
the diminution in the value of the assets of the company. 2
shareholder who happens to be a judge is in no different position.
In my view, a judge shareholder can have no direct pecuniary
interest in the outcome of this appeal.

A factor which should not be left out of consideration is
the function of this Court. We are not called upon to be
primary decision makers: we are required to determine a question
of law, viz. whether there are facts which in law amount to

fraud. We are called upon to do so in an interlocutory appeal.

We are in no different position to the judge in R. v. Mulvihull

who would have had to determine as a matter of law whether the
facts before him amounted in law to the charges preferred
against the appellant on the indictmenc. He had to answer the
qQuestion -~ Was there a prima facie case to answer? The Court
of hppeal did not suggest that in considering that question of
law, the judge was a judye in his own cause.

We can then apply the second test articulated in

R. v. Mulvihull (supra) i.e. whether the rcasonable and fair-

minded person sitting in this Court in possession of all the
relevant facts would consider the trial unfair. To remind of

those facts -
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(i) the fact that the judge had shares in
a public company T.0.J. which shares
were marketed on the Stock Exchange
and the fact that the company had an
authorized share capital of One
Thousand Million Dollars ($1000M).

(ii) that shares give a shareholder a
right of participation in the company
but any wrong to the company is not
a loss' to the shareholder.
(1ii) that the judges were not 'trying’
any factual issue but considering a
guestion of law;
(iv) that whatever the outcome, the iudge
as a shareholder does not suffer a
loss and therefore has no direct
pecuniary interest in the outcome.
If the test is applied to those facts, the reasonable fair-
minded person could not reasonably have entertained any
suspicion but that a fair hearing was in prcgress.
I think Lord Cranworth was right. If the rule against
bias means that when a judge has shares in a company involved
in litigation before him, that he is disqualified, then, in

present day Jamaica when a great number of people have shares

in public companies, it would be d dangerous doctrine. In
this Court of seven members where most, if not all, own shares
in some public company or other, in almost every case our
decision must be bad because in any case where such a company
is concerned, some one judge of appeal or other will have an

interest.

1

t is, I think right to make one further point in this
regard. In small societies such as ours, the situation may

be such, that there may be no judges at all to replace those
who may rightly be held to be disqualified on the ground of
bias or more precisely, the real likelihood of bias. In those
cases, this rule of natural justice must yield to necessity,

for otherwise the machinery of justice would break down. An
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example of this occurred in Dymes v. Grand Junction Canal (supra)

where before the appeal from the Vice-Chancellor came to the
House of Lords, the Lord Chancellor had to sign an order for
enrolment. It was held by their Lordships that his shareholding
in the company, which disqualified him from hearing the appeal,
did not affect the enrolment since no one but he had power to
effect it. It was said at page 787 -~ "For this is a case of
necessity, and where that occurs the objection of interest cannot

prevail.” See also The Judges v. A.G. for Saskatchewan [1937]

53 T.L.R. 404 where the Government of the province reguired the
Court to determine whether the salaries of judges were liable
to income tax. The Privy Council confirmed that the Court was
entitled to act as a matter of necessity.

Since the present court comprises seven members, two of
whom own no shares in 7.0.J., it would not at all be possible
to convene a bench of three, none of whom owned shares in the
thirteenth defendant. Mr. Manderson-Jones had argued that the
court could be constituted of the two non-sharcholding members
and one sharcholder. But that does not circumvent the rule, for
it could be suggested that the possibility of taint would affect
the two non-shareholding members. This rule of necessity would
result in a panel of the court comprising any sort of
permutation. There would be no ideal position. In my view,
however, for the reasons I have offered, the rule of necessity
need not be relied on.

For the reasons I have given, I am satisfied that it is not
the law that a judge is disqualified automatically from
discharging his judicial functions in a case which involves a
company in which he has shares. It has to be shown that the
judge has a direct pecuniary interest in the outcome, and none

of the judges has any direct pecuniary interest in the outcome
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of this interlocutory appeal nor has any member of the Court
been shown to have any such interest. Mr. Manderson-Jones
suggested that since the litigation had been initiated, shares
had fallen but, as Mrs. Hudson-Phillips correctly pointed out,
and be it noted this fact appeared in Mr. Manderson-Jones' own
affidavit, the value of the shares had since risen by 33°1/3%
For all these reasons, I agree with my brothers that the
appeal should be allowed and the order of Edwards J that the
derivative acticn proceed, be set aside. The respondents, we

held, were entitled to their costs both here and below.



!

TN S a0 '
UJ}\A\"li-'-J J oo u

¥nshrined as ihe rule in Fossg V. Harboitle (Lu4s}

~¢

v dore st is the p.o.oneiple of che sop:iimacy of tche majurity
in a company. SuCi thais ix fullews that where cthere 1s a

wrong hes been coae Lo the cowpany., the

0

complaine thil
sropex plazntaiff is the company. Lut for good reasons there
are aamittec eiceprions in CLICUNMSTALCTS yinzeh cannot b

cemedied by @ confipmation by tne wajority. The cxceptions ares
i, wnere the act complained of

is nlora vereg the company

or is illegel.

2. Whers the act consticuics a
frauc against the minciiiy
anG tne wrong-dosers are
cheiselves in control or the
COMP&EIY o

)

. vherse @ resclutlion reguiriny
a gualifiec majoricy has oeen
passed by « simple majoricy.

Arising out of the sale of twe propeitics to the defen-
want cowpany, ‘relecommunicaticns of Jamaica Limized (1.0.J.),
by Development Properties Yimited, a cowmpany .n which

tayer Letalch, Chariman of T.u.d., was alse Chalrman anG/or

-~

Directoy, for ¢ price of approxinately $4¢,000.000 neti, the
plaintiffs comuencec action against the cefendants/lespondents
with the excepcion of Lag thirteentil defencant/respondeng

(i, G.Jd) clamaing camagess
Bwor FlLauG. migruepresentalcion
and or negligence Avising in
pelation vo the issuing »y the
defenuancs in oL aboud
Jeptenber; L¥0y of a protpec
cu. for the sale of cercnin
sheces ip Telecousmunicatloas
of Jamaica ane also in fela-
cien to the purciiese in 1959
oy ths company of ceyeain
propercazs.”

whis st.t, whice cazciully avelded aay cilegaticns against

d ' S * v L - smy v b eyt g - Vg i I
‘.':.’o(;’oJu" i.a:‘!‘ (o7 s WSS 1 <3 D0C..O J S Y'.:c’.A. wSLole i‘u\)'Uo waS adaed

N

ilocations onendec to read so far as Lo relevant -

and cho



oy
—..4'..)..

Csune plaantiris aloc clain Lomages
en che ground chat iR awdition Lo
Leing rrausulent the pucchase of
cire said propexcies was ultia

Gares the Memoranaua of Lesociaiion
ci relecowauaicacicns of Jamalica
Limited vao”

1nis accion Ly uvhe plaincifis is xuown ¢o & Ggerivative &CCioh
zna vhenever sueh an action 1s Lrougit the company Ras the right
o have & Geterwination Ly the Couru as « Prelllinary isoue the
quest.on vhaetne:s tae cerivative act.on should be mainvained.

Ey summons caled august <1; 1550, 4.0.J. brougnt the issue
wefore the court and after & heasing in Chambers on October ¥
and 9, 199y, Ldwaras, . Jrderec:

1. %hat the plaintiific are entitled
CO eaintain a derivacive action
on benalf or the thigceenih
defencanc.

He granted Leave Lo appeal and f.wed the dace Yow tus hearing

[

war.ne ¢f the appeal.

B

of Jhe summons for Lirecticns pencisy the
whie nppeal is against his oruer that che derivat.ve actlion be
maintainea. whe four g¢rouncs on vhicen that ordaer is challenged
are st ouc oelows:

1. Ly SWuaone datea List huyust 4530
ciie Tharceench Defendant applied
co the Court co acteiniie as o
vreliminary issue the wight or the
Plaintifis/respondencts O MaNTawl
the doirivative actoon purporiedly
brewon. for the pencfit oi the
vharceeutn Defendant herein. 2Praiowx
te che hearing cf che summons afores
wentionca the Plaintciffs/kuspondents
reLsed the rcllowing three issues
for the determination of ciie learneu
Juvge, the first two or wihich were
in cbhijection to che hearing of the
ofeorementioned cumaons ci the Yhir-
ceenth Defendant:

{u) vhat che Jwnwils wWas noc pio~
constitutca,

(iz’  chav the Janmons was oul oOf
iime as tue pliadiangs hod
ueen clesesd, sumnons fow
piroctions fades for hears
and cherezore che applica
was an abuse of the process of
che court,

o
[
b T
o
-



(ianl)  wnat =ihe duponents to wffi-
cav.vs fited on behalf of
#he ynarceen.n bDerencant/
appellany should be ordered
o attend for wross-
OxeinactlLoll.

e diecrned Judge GoUeEDlsilGu Dl
ch.iG aforesalda issue Ua.sce by
the Pleintifts/kespondents by
suline that crosg-—exansziacion
chould only Le ordered in excap-
cicnal circumscances and thes 1L
woulid nuect be aypropriate av cnat
stage to order tiie ueponcnits to
affidavivs filed cn behalf of
e Thircteenth verfaacaini/
Zpoellant to attend £e. Cress-
cxamination, novever the
learnea Juuge misapprﬁncnceu that
e ougat to have ruled on the
sirvst twc ato BSHLG 185zUeS YAaised
in liminc oy the Pla.nciifs/
Respcuuents berore uncav.ng and
deternining the pummanﬁ of che
vhizteenth peifendant arcye-~
mencioned and instesd erxed Ly
orcering tnac the Plaint.ffs/
fesponaents were entitlea co
maincain the cerivative ace2on
hercin thereby efieccrvely
wetezminilg che substancive
swmons of the Thixcsendl
Defendant aforsmencionsd with-
cut firscly ruling om Tne arosc:
caid lssues in linane raiseu by
i ?lulntﬁffS/PPSPQﬂuﬁntS anu
without eVIGHNCE DL UuuCed
&ne/oL SUuiissions be_ng wade
YITespect 0 wié SOid cunmons
Zu the paniies The.otc,

b
v
@

She learnod JUUgE «ulaG vaasn
founa vhnait che dl&int;ifs/
SCUPONGENRLE were er-ciclec tu
LLinitaan o dorivetive actLon 48
hig finaings we:e COLLY LY €O
S51C: oLdes aaving edaxd wQ e
principles affiriea in the cases
of R2LUukivr ol ~a;w0.{\~)i\\—h 0. WD,
v, WEWRY LEDUSWHAED LiHEWED o
& L._gu:i: ioaLiida 354 and Skl v,
CroF {lo, 2) LSy I ouLa L35,

vhe leorned judge foxlew to
sppreciace dhat the Ple Lnu*rfg/
sespondence chould noc D¢ 2llowed
Cu maincain cie Qeoivaitive accion
cn pehalf oo thae Yhillesnli
vefcuuant/appcllanc ualess the
accron £well withia e propll
DOUNUALLCE O e Chgepition €o

che rule in ¥ubdb V. HeadoJOTLE

vhec is o say chat the Plaintilis/



w3 b

flgspondLncs L on the ev.gence
adduced established a praima facle
cage that i) the acts complained
GL dexe ultra vigces. illegal or

a aud perpec rated on the Company
anu ;*) Tha Lompany was prevenced
from being pooperly joined as &
Plosncifif co the action by reascen
of whe fact thac 1t was concrolled
py the wriongdoers. in Lailinf o
inc & a-zua facie case of either
wrongdoing or control by the
wrongyloers, the learnzd Judge
erseda in ordering uhc' tiie geriva-
cive action could Se haintained.

. whe leavned Judge er.oa ain failing
-0 ordex that the ae.ivativo
actaon ought noc to e pursued by
Lhe Plaint.tfs/Respendencs in
light of his f.ndings which were
as follows:

o~
~
.}
5
0

cts complainca of by

i 11t trs/ﬂggponuentg
were uo0t ulcya vires the
cwjects containcd in cne
tiemourancum of sssociation

of “he Thirceenth bLefendalit/
adppeliant

vhe arfidavices ¢ the
Plazntiifs/Pespondenits did
noc ge keyond mere allega-
tions ci asservions of
Iraud

Canal
1
s

—

{fxi) %he Plaintisis/Respondents
had mad2 nc recuest oX
upproach to he wairicenth
a)"fEI';Uc.IxL/-.LJD\.l]c.i'.u- fors it
Lo congis.ew the br;ngtﬂg
of zuch ain ectzon.’

ToUed. no o public company with & saale capital oI
J81,000,uvv,uly and several miiliois of iv6 ushazes were olicne

on sale o the puliic., 4Ln adcition, iis

0]

shares @oe guoted on
the Jaitaicis stocih bmrchange. Awarce thac five ci the scven
Judges comprising che Coari of sppeal (which five include the

chivee presiding Judges

S
1]

e saarenclders in 2.0U.J., the Court
choughe it Lost co neie the cisclosure vatheyr than leave it G
be discovered. iir. Leo=rhynoe, ..C., crtex consuilatlon;

speaiing on benalf of @il counsel, except Mr. Hanaevson-Junus

saig Uiney fad NHo ChHeCTivun vwo tha Bsacliy, o8 constriutet, Lo

t?..



hie poart. ki, Mancersci-Jones
nis sugyesclion niue Dy iettew
the vase to the Jourt Lelicou;
otherwise he would object on

in yacher cnbecomanyg mannoel,
ground of appcel and &oCordan
vwouldé be witharawing frow the

Ty
du

scatec that 1f the Court accepted
which he nad exhipiitea and remit
he would raise no objection but

the Jround of pias. He announced,

cnat he agrews wich cthe first
gly he had nothing Lo wrgue and

e atcend to a trial

natter clscviexe de wuw only deteryad LrTom carcyand ouc this
acc of Gigcourvesv oy 2 stern warning from the Bench and there-
after he dia nothing to disguise his daspleasure and; indeed,
had to be cautiocnec mGre tiRan once. Luca concuct s inexcus-
ably contumelious

vhe objection based on bias was over-suled. To my
minu, it is unthinkable thav Juoges cof Appeal, who are all
gual:zfied lavvers with years of exnpoeriencsz, could be cnought
te be influenced by any gtestizn of bizs in dealing with the
guesticns viich come before tne:.: for gecermination. And,; 1in

my opinion. tie csudoes ci che

in the same light., o

land w

'..l

tind

various Judges of

ficant contributicn wo tha as

countiy. Luc, ir for no oche

Juages do use Lthe scrvices of

chat whenever cases invelving

pell has (o be taien to dece:x

in any sucih baaki? in oux

willion peo there ase jus

93.';"(

Court of Appeal ana owenty-ou

23

nov ¢ifricule co envisage

&3
(4]

wvere countenance

3y .
e s e
~ enCd

Hh

ion ©

-
“

ina Judge Lo adjudicace in

[

GAge LNSTLLLLAON, an

popuia

inguyance

o

suprome Coust ought tou be regarded

is necded to concluawe that the

suldé not e able Lo make

scits ©f thne verious

¥ reason then for convenience, the

thuse panks. is i1t Lo we 9aic

canns vefore thoe Coulus a

which Judge has an interest

mine

tion cf jusc a lictle over wuy

c seven Judges sititing in the

@ in L SUPreEie Lourt

o which, +f this allega-

e

Gy t mrght be impossible fo

2 case concerniing & ank, a morce

ceompany ©r an, other financial



-
i ation in which, in the norital conducc of his affaivrs, a
Juuyge way have & financial inter=sc.

Lpasmuch o6 no avthorities werve Delfore e vourt at

2
D‘.
T
c

the compencement of wnis mattec, althougn reference was e
aecided principles, counsel, with the cxccption of
b, Mancersen-dones, on vhe following eay wcught loave to vring

to the Louri's ac~ntion certailn cases including:

Pyumes vs. Grand Junction Canal Co.

Proprietors (i¢5z2) 3 H,L.C. 75Y

R. V. Burcon and another, Justices
Exparte Young (lu57) 490

R, v. Mulvihill (16%0) 1 ALl E.R. 43%.

The majority of the cases cited stammed from decisions in
Justices Courts ana were the pronouncements of Review Tiribunals

which we doubted could apply tc a Court of Appeal., X. v. Mulvi--

nill (supra) was a criminal case in which the accusce had been
convicced of conspiracy te vob, the casc against him being that
ne was accually involved in six wobbaries and ona attempted
robhery at premises belonging to various banks and building
societies. Une ox the offences had tatern place ac a branch of

a banl in wiich, c¢ che vime of the appelleni's teial, the trial
judge owned Lo30 sharcs. The Judage did not aisclose his share-

olding in open Court. Thce appellant councended chat had he

Anown of the Judee's shareholding he woula have opjected to s
conducceing che crial. wnoe appewl was dismissed and although
chat case invoived trinl by judge and jury in which the Judge
only gave effect —o the findungs of the jury the principles
statow by the Court of Appeal axe of ascuscance here. In giving
the judgment of ihe Louri, srocie, J. saxd at page 435:

whe_e arce twe clear anc discinct
iinws of authorities which hclip a
court in detecnsning what test to
uryl} when it os contendad that a
juaicial decisicn should pe sec
agLUe on tne grounds tnac che
adnudicocor has an lnbteresc, ceal
cr perccived,; iz the outcowe of



L e

“the proceecings, Wha Liiosu of
inese rines of authoriiy 15 con~
cernaa with cases wn whicih: the
aciuaicator has & direcc pecuni-
ary interest in che outcome of
the case. In these cases the
Court applies very strictly the
maxim cthel nobody may be a judge
i his own cause;, and decisions
which are made in c'iose ciucul-
scances are veidable because bias
is conclusively praesuned. ‘the
otner liue of auvthoricy 1is con-~
cerned witin cases an which there
is no suchh darect pecunialyy
interose i che oulccne ol tie
case, ~UL the surrounalng Circum-
sc.ances give riuse te A rzasonable
suspicion tnac justice is not
being cone because an aqjudicatorn
has an Znterestc whroh falls shoxt
Oof Bbeint & Q.rIct pocunLary
mutesest:

‘in such a case waeve .S no
sucn presumpcicin as asisces in
tie case of o pecuniaxry
incerest, but the guestron

is whecher chere 1s a real
likelaihicoa, eriszine from
clicwistances such as would
give rise tou a challenge to
che favour, wnat the juage

or justice woula nave a bias'’.”

There is a caveat to be observed in ealing with the guestion

of direct pecuniary inteves: which 18 that cases which pre-date

-

Salomon v. Salomon & Co. Lid., (Lo%7) wm.o. 22 {which established

I3

Lhe dustincclion between the company anoe the shareholdesr) are
not lizxely Lo be very helpful. it ig my considered opinion,
arter a rull discussiron uvi the cases; that the posicvicic of the
Judges of cne Court hearing this appeal »s potinconflict Wit

the praincipglee stivred in k. v, Mulvihill (supra). 7The Lourt's

criginal decisicn remnained vnalicred.

Lec e Ny revurn to the agppeal proper. oo was sub-
micted ithat the lealned vrial juuge dealt only with the third
of cthe three issues and then founa :in favour of cwie plaintiifs.
Viith tnis thoe plaantiffs/sespondencs agree aund would have the
ratter repditted to che learneca judge ol furiner considerac.on,

However, ficm submissicns macwe defore us ane from a reading of



the judgmenc delivered Ly cthe learnec juuye, it 1s clear that
the issues wese fully veniilaced before hirn, 1t follows chat
this Couxt is egualiy sexsec of thoe issues and since a remictal
would aincur fuvcher delay ana costs it was aecided aot to
zeuirt the case.

Lroonnes S, 3, ahd 4 are reall; Lepetitive of the
complaint against the orues declaring the entitlement of the
plaintiffs,/respondencs to maincean the derivative action.

DJuch an order znvelves a finding that the case falls withiua tue

exception o the Rule in Foss v. Harbottle (suprz). but this

LS N0t uneeyr ool heaawns or uwltrae vares, 'dhe Lcarnea juage
maue a specific fiudaing tiawt the purchage of the propesrcies

.

was nNoLw an ultra vives act. 4Lnd that

WUET . lhacea, De S0.

s

“Yo be ulira vives the coupany, an act musc be beyona the
ciiijects for whica 1l as incorpcrated. <Conceguently. che
coiwany could neither insiiate the act nor approve ic in a
general meeiing., What D.0.0. as done Ls U0 acguire property,

an acc cpecifically provided foo by omjcct No. 16 of the Memoran-

GUR 0f ASsocifvion; whiicn, SO far &s i relevaeny, reads:

"W purchiase or by any olhex

means acyuire any reeholu

leasehold oy any othexr propircy

for any estate oxr interest wiac-

evar cee.”
suppercive of this object is cwject No. 40, which reacs:

"o do all such other taings a&s

may be decued incaidental or con-

aucive to the attainwent of whe

aocve cbijects or uny of them.”
50 the acguisition oi property cannot ¢ ultra vires the
company. doweves, 1t appears chat nr. mancerscr--jones sought
to imbue the wlica vires principle with 4 new mean.ag. He
contended chat V.C.J. was not auchorizea to nake the acguisi-
tion for the price poru witich ne waintainece was in excess of

“ehe naxiiwun wi $au milloon nec with che company (1.0.J.)

peing responginie for tie transier cogic®. Dbut such &



_4(}_
contention has nuising to recomaend it. I say s¢ for two
recasons, Firstly, the author::ty to purchase land sets no price
beyorna which tne cowpany may not buy. seconaly, no particulax
contractual formula has been impcsed upon “hic company. The
langucge complained oL is certainly not a device to impose upon
the company the obligation of paying the vendor his full price
ana then paying the Transfer Tax on that sum.

“he other ground on which it was claimea chat T.0.d.
nod actew ultra vires was set out at paragraph &3 of the affi-
gavit of Hector Bernand in wnich the case for the wlaintiifs
Appear. The paragrapi reads:

CoHA% tne anstrument of transfer of

Jhe said properties which purportea

-0 be signed unuez the Conrwmon seal

cf the Thirteenth Defenuasc Dy cne

of its vDirectors was not signed by

any Director of the Thirtcenta vefen-

Gant. it was signea by the President

cf t.e Thisteentn Defencant,

K., Chantrelie, wiio Knowingly and

fzlcely represenced himseli to be

siyning as a birector. Tnat no seal

was arfixed.”
Phis was o most unfortunate allegution fcr which
mr. Mancerson-ocnes apologized 1o tane Court plaming ctie alle-
gation againsc . Chantrelle on an oversight, indeed, the
Latvers accut which complainct was nade in the cicea paragraph
vere of My. khamnderscn-sunes' own maxing. Yhe transfer occupies
two pages but cnly the first page chereo?f was cxhipited co the
aforosaid affiavit of Hector cernaid. NO signature appears
on LiliS pace ana Accordingly tne seal 0f the company was not
affixec vo cua:t paga. BSul ween wellian bertianm, secretary to
the cowpany, exhibited the cowplete syrensfer the signature of
Mr. Chantrelle as cirector aad the seal or the conpany aie
there to bhe seen. Yhe clection of hr. P. Chantyelle as a
director 1& containcd in the Hainutes of the fiLrst snnual
denersl wmecting of T.U.J. helu 1a Kingston on HoVeRLex 30, 1lzca,

ane there should have been no ailificulvy 10 asCcercasning wiio
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vgere the airecsors of YW.0.J. ac tie

£iVely, cUErerora; tie iLsue of the ulc
G.0.0. 18 eifectively laia to resc.

121 the samte resting i

changes egainsi cevtain of the defenaants,’x
whom the orce: of BGwards, J. cannot pussibl

*

Whet, FeSPecTivae sUtorneys pornied ous
¥

material tine.

als

Conciu-

v viigs acitaon by

¢ are co be fcund the
eupondents agalnst

have any effecc.

[

the baseo cn whach

these aefendants/respencents Loc in no way involved.
s, auusSon-Phillips, by ferzing to the record,

pointed out (u.ie cleariy chat by,

penuweool

Charles (fifth

gefendani/seup0ondli.L} Was sbgent IVroi

24¢h votovayr, 198 wvmere the Gecis.on

Ve

<hic neeting on

taken te purchase

the purceis of land end ¢ played no parc i uhe amplenenta-

tion of the avreemenc. Clearly.

- + -

be laid¢ at his coor uneer any nzad of

thecerore,

no licpbiririty can

claim.

the recori olso reveals tunat at tile meeting of

PoLed. On Léch Loveber, L%tu, I

dosferd

Ccott {(tench

defendenc/respondent) indicatea his int

re—-election and 5o

meecing of Y.u . hela on

he was not a uirector of T.0.0. at che

mentation of che decisicon LO purcLase.

actacn Lo o idi.

On Lehali of David ars

AcLlen Ropeintson

CESponG-oNL) imiss

that he was abgent from the meeting held on L4th

at which the

e pasis for eutaching liaoili

h3 recaras the remaining def
CUPLOUS SUDMLESLONS Were Made anG seve
on the romaining Lssue of ryaud. Buu

chese supmissions and goechorities, i

wWas not re-z_ected atc

20th Novempe:r -

caecisicn to purchase tiie TWwe

ition not to seek

“ne Snnual General

1$8C. nccordingly,
Lime of tne imple-

vo liamilizy can

cdefendantc/
iecord tuv shiow

sites was taken ana

ity to hikt CHisStS.
encants/ responaants,
ral authorsties cited

perore awverting to

LE NCCcEssary <o

{Ocktober, 1%d¢8,



el am
1dentiry the f£raud in concemplacion and vo decermine whether

¢ pleaaing contorms wivn the roeguiremencs, The endorscment

—
e

L

£ the wiat alleging frauce is in the following termss

-

laintitfi‘s clava 1e fov
aamages Taud, asiepresceni-
atlion anu or Negliusence . isiily
in relicicn to cthe issuing oY
che Lefendents in oun about
veprtenber . LYse OL a prespectus
for e sale of cercailn <iuares
in tleleconrmunicacions oi Jamaica
Limited anu ¢lise in relavion o
the purchese in L¥eb by thac
company oI curtain propertiocs.
“he plainciifs also claim
aueges ol wie ground that in
adalticun Lo being rraudaulent
vh~ purchase oi the sald
properties was ultra vires whe
memoecandun of Association oF
velecommunzcatlions O JalaliiCé
Lieited, ‘Yhe Fiestc Defencalit
is suad under the Crown Pro-
cecaings ihct on ocehalf of the
Accouncant-eeneral, a CoxjG-
rsacion uole pursuant te the
Crown Preoperiy (Vescing) act;
which 1s and vas at all mace-
izl tiwes a majcy sharchclaer
in Yeliecommuiiications of Jamaice
Limitew wid was the owner of
the shayes in chac company wihich
wora offcred rLox sale to Lthe
public in the saia preszpectus.”

“f vhe clainm of fraud was co yo forward, what should
follow is tnat in the Statement of Claim the charge of frauc
shculu "be pleaaed with the uvcmost particutoc.ty” (Or: L8/6/8).
section 170(.) or the vudicatura (Civeli Proceaure Coae) Law
iecuiress

e - 11 cascea hirh & parts
AN alli casges 1n wWwhlch & party
pleading relics on any migrepres

gentation, fiaud ... particulacs
suzlil be statea in the plecuiag ...

uw
wvhe insistence con che appropricte pleading, when fraud is
ailecvea, s fusther cmphasized in rder io/l:/13 where 1t is

statea that:

"eeedit i® nNow proviuea chiat the
uzcessary parviculare of raud-
vlent zutoentici must e contained
w1n the pleaaiiy, . “he plecdcer
shoule accocdingly seit out che



g

FfLacis, mutieres andé cilroumstanses
ieliec upon co show that tne

pe oy chargda nadg or was actuated
Ly & fraudulent intention. fraud-
uvloat concuct nuct Le aiscinctly
allecud anc as disgiincily proeved,
anu ic is noc cllowable to luave
Craud ©o be inferred fvcem the
facts (Pavy v. Garxett (L1o72)

- .

i\'“ l). ‘-.'IJ p. ’-'&/‘&'_; “ & & o 0 0 c e s o

£,

L - L - R N I B L R B L
Gencral &llcg;I--HJ, howzves
scrong may we the words inm whick
Lhey are sitacea, are insufficicnt
co anocunit to an averment of Lraud
of whzch any Jourt ouchi to take
nulice, Wallingfora v. Hutual
Society (1tuld) 5 npp. vas. bés

1)- 0975 9% e 0+ 00 %OV O00EVE eSO D000

ERL R L B L B L B B AR A L L L L L L
The acts allegyed to ke frauduleac
must be set cuc; and chen it must
e stated that these acis weare
gone Irauduliently, ctherwise no
evidence in supporc of them uill
e received (Re Rica Golid washlng
S:.?_o 51879} J..I. (.,ll. z) 3\.’ »nto'...

it follows Zrom the above-menct.oned provisions

zegavrding the pleading of fraud that when Bdwaids, J. looked
at the pleadings =i he wid not #¥ind compliance with these
reguirenents he should have aavised himself chat tnere were
no alilagations of traua of walceh e cughi to taxke notice.

So the question usvucally acvises “what ave che allegations of
fraud on walch ne waae the orxder thac the plainciifs are
envtitled to maincain o delivacive action on bencsli of the
thirteenth defcencant?  1v weule seinor appear chat the plain-

tiffs had rcsiled fcos The chargye of fraud mentionea in tie

)

[#

enucrseneut 1o the Wiit pecavse in none i the twentv-four
paragrapns in the statoment of Claiim can there pe found even
a generel allegation or draud let alone any charcge of rraud
pleadea with the utmest parcicularity. in his judgment, cne
leannea juuwge solid:

"Ihese 18 a vellee suggesuion

o Ifiaud on che minority. It

.8 nou establishaod wnat tnose

in control wid not do anytaing

&8 thev were not teold of uhne
aCulun.”



Then later he sasds

whe quescaion is whether the piain-~
tirgs are ﬁnu-;luﬂ to coniinue
Lhis matter. L comne to the con-
clusicn w¢uh & ygreat GCal oi
difficulty, that at thig stace,
a guest.on cf fraue is alleged by
The pliigtiiffs, They sncula pe
ecantitied o maintailn a dersivoetive
action for the bensfin of che
chirveentn defendant. All we have
here are dilcgations, Z Thaink
that 1t would come within the
P”ccpr;on “o the rule in ¥Foss v.
Barbottle. f4he (uesticn of fraud.
not vitrae vires, should i dealt
wich properly &t a trial. 2das
matter should proceed te triazl so
that the matter can be resolved.
Fraud 1s alleged, all directors
concernea are involved as parties
to the action.”

As L have shioun =zarlier, thas omnibus ¥inding concerning the
girectors weould result in directcocss wno haa nouliing vhatsoever to
do with the transactions being unnecessarily involved in a lengthy
litigatiocn. furtheyr, those directors who are involved would
not o able to meet the ailcgocaions or fraud because of tche
non-ceomplizace with the rejuirements for pleaaing Lrald.

alciicugh no Court ought o woke nctice 0of yeneral

roeud we uid, with counsel, examine the vol

| ]

allegations of
minoune affiaavit eveogence filea ws counsel sparaed no cfiort in
the endeaveour te show that :ho owuer maae by Bdwards. J. was
done in eridol 4nd we came aw.y enpty-haaded. o fraud was dis-
closen. £OL instance, in centenaing .hat che uirccterls accad
frauculently fv must be shown that chey, as dzructors, stocd to

gein some bencfit, 1o Prudential v. Uewnan industries (Ho. 2)

{19060} 2 K1l 2.2. 841 at page €u3i-p, the princzple is

: ricies suow that ¢he

o
o
Ve
=

“Yous th chos
eyeeption agplies not only where
che allegacion ie chic girectors
who coeatrol o bOmbauj have impro~
pevly appropriiuea Lo thenselves
MCHncy , Properiy oX Aavantages wL-cu
beicony to the vompan)y or, .Ln breach



,-él_-.;._

“of thexir Guty toe the company. have
Goveited pusiness to themselves
¢hich ouglt to have bLeen viven to
cthe comp.ny . 2ut more genesully
where ALt as allecew that dirscetors
thoush acting “in tne beliexr that
they were dorng nothing wiong' (pexr
Lord Lindley MR in Alexander V.
Avtomatic Telephone Co. {100

2 Ch ¢ oat »h) are guilivy of a
braach of duty o the coupany
(including their duty vo cuciclse

Droper care} and o3 a result of
thac breach obtain some penefit.”

This element oi prerefit is a sine qua neon in the proof of fraud
againsy dircccers. DBut one uwoula searc¢h in vein to fina

@vidence of such benefit.

The affidavii of william vialberforce seritram,
vecretary of W.G.J., discloses that the relevant girecceors were

aware of the auty to exercise proper care, Accordingly, they
did not Just fusi to acguire the disputed propurties. alter-
native sices were consicdered wiih cercoin Critverid in mind.
Engineers' reports were obtained in respece of all sices under
consideration and iv vas agains:i these criteraia that the suit-
ability of thi Gisputeo sites was decided ang the others
eliminaced. %hen, Loo, tha price of juv m2llica neti was
arcived ot after wegotiation, The us.ing poice was $54 wallion

.

nett. Further, 4t ke neetings wiscussing che cholces of sites;
the cvwelfth defendont/responcent aeclarea nis interest, lefé
the meetiny aund wock no part in the ensuing deliierations or
decisicn concesning the s:ites. His acuion was in accordance
with hruicle 105 of the Art.cles of association of che Telo-
phone Company of Jawa.ca.

Accoraingly, . have been unakle to ideniify any
taintea conduct by the twelfon defendant/respondent or by any
of the other defendanis/respondencs wniuh can ue accoLmodaced

under che zubric “froueh,
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)

m

espite ihe thoroughness ead sloguence ox

uerence of clients. hav.nhy regara to the path

adoptea in confroncing the issue L not

us necessary co elanine chose supnissions whach all

the fact that there is no guestion of
howeves,

Se :L lfl'\lst Fl

traue on the past

L have
regarc 1t
gmpnasize

of any

recerd lay

appreciation or the very valuoole cuntribution of counsel.

1%

the appeal with cosits te the defendants/respondents.

hese, Lhen. are wy reasons Lo <¢oacurring in allowing
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GORDON, Jh (AG.)

The Plaintiffs Respondents who aie sharehclders of
thie thirteenth defendant company Telecommunica:ions of Jawmaica
Limited (.O.J), filed suit against the defendants claiming
damages for fraud, misrepresentation and/or negligence. The
plaintiffs also claimed tha. acts done by tche defendants were
ultra vires and fraudulent and that the defendants were 1in
control of the company. On this basis the plaintiffs sought
¢ maintain a derivative action for the benefiit cf the
thirteenth defendant.
By summons dated the 2lsi august, 1990 the thirteenth
defendart scughts
(i} “"kn oxrdesy determining as a
preliminary iszsue in tnis acticn
the question whether the Pleintiifs
are entitled to maintain in this
suit a derivative action for the
penefic of the 13th defendant.
(1i) Alternatively, liberty to file a
defence to the thirteenth
Defendant if necessary.”
At the hearing of the summons the Plainciff/Respondent raised
in limine the following issues:

{a) that the sumcons was nct properly
constituted.

\b) that the summons was out cf time
as the pleadings had been closed,
summens for Directions fixed for
hearing and therefore the applica-
tion was an abuse of the process
of the courl and
(c; that ihe deponencs to affidaviis
filed on behalf of the thirteenth
defendant should be ordered ko
attend for cross-examination.
in an oral judgment delivered on 9wiz Ucitober, 19906
and reduced to writing wy the parties hersto, BEdwards J.
ruled that the plaintiffs were entitled to maintain a
derivative action and that it was inappropriate at that stage
to order cross-examination. The thirteenth defendant now

appealed this order meintaining that arguments were addressed

to the learned tvial judge on the issues raised in limine by
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the Plaintiffs/Respondents anc he failed to rule on (a} and
(k) {(supra) and he :suled on the substantive summons of the
thirteenth dcfendant without the benciit of argument and acted
in error 1in Gismiecsing the thirteenth defendant’s summons.

As the Respondents still have their personal action
to be vried, » will dezal only with 30 much of the facts as I
deem nacessary for cthe purpose of the decisiocn arrived at.

The thirteenth defendani is a company duly incorporated
on iSth May 1587 with registered offices at &7 Half Vay Tree
Road in S5t. nndrew. The purpose for the formation of the
company is stated in the affidavii of William Bertram, the
senior Vice President, finance and Sccretary of the thicteenth
Gefendant. This affidavit was sworn in suppost of the summons
filed by the thirleenth defendant cdated 2Zlst August, 1894 and
the deponent therein siated:

LH

The Thirteencit Defendant was
formed foo the purposc of
inmplementing a joint venture
between the Government of Jawmaica
and thz Second Defendani.., Cable
and Vireless (VWest Incies) Limited,
with the objective of acguiring
ovmersship of Jamaica International
“elecommunications Limited (here-
inafter called "Jarintel') ané the
Jamaica Telephone Cempany Limiced
thereinafcer called "JTC") n order
to centralise the business of
telecommunications in Jamaica.

Lo
a

4. In furtherance of the joinc veniure
the Government of Jamaica transferred
its entire sharcholding in JTC te the
Thirteenth Defendanc in recurn for
shares in the Thirteenth Defendant
and subsequently, the Thirteenth
Di:fendant acguired the remaining
shares in JTC in cuchange for shares
in the Thirteentl. Defendantc. The
Seconu BPefencant and the Governmentc
of Jamaica also iransfcrsred all their
shares in Jamintel to the Thirteenth
Defendant in rewurn for shares in

the Thirteenth D¢fendant, thercby
renda2ring Jamintel and J7C whelly
owned subsidiaries of the Thirteenth
Lefendant:.
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5. The Thirteenth Defendant was
formed as a pravate Company with
an authorised share capital ci One
Thousand Pillion Jamaccon Dollars
(SL,000 ,uOO G0C) and «f its Llssued
sharc capital 53.1 per cent of the
shares me:e owned by the Covernment
cof Jamaice, and¢ 3¢ per cent of the
shares werc owned by the Second
Defencanc from 2nd March ©98C5. ZIn
June 122%,. the Sccond Defendanc
acquired a furcher <i per cent of
issued shares ¢f tne Thirteenth
Defendant to bring iis total share-
holding tc 29 per cent, which now
naxes th Second Defendant the
owne: cf the majoricty of “he issued
sharec of the Thirveenih bDefendant.

%, On the st July 1907, the Articles
of Assocration of the Whirceenth
Defendant weve duly amended tc
effectually cenvert the Thirteench

Defendant from o private compaeny o
a public company.

Tne affidavit of Mr. Bertram states that prior to the
formation of the thirteenth defendant and as part of negotiations
between the Covernment of Jamaica and the second defendant,
the JTC requested the parent cocmpany of the second defendant
in the U.X, Cable and Wireless PLC of the U.XK of Great Britain

to conduct a survey of the JTC's copevaticns to assess the needs

and ma.ie recommendations, Cable and Wiceless PLC a company

‘\

of undoubted expcriise and repute sent o team to Jamaica to

ariy out a survey and this tean’s report was submitted to the
Covernnent in due course. The tean recommendoed impiovemnents
that would result in the incizase in JTC e customers from the
then existing £0,000 Lo approximately 2I0,000 with this being
doubled cvery ten years. The improvemeni would render the
opexrations of JTC viable ana the service it offered comparable
with that in other councries. The team recommended the ciiing
of teleplhicne service cenlces cn land of 12 te 20 acres. The
circuastances of the acquisition of sites necessary to implement
Lthis recommendation is the basis of the complaint of the
plaintiffs/respendents in ¢his suit,

On or about Znd September, 1960 che thirteenth deiendant

l:é
[xd
0
U
-
@

issued a prospectus daced 3list August, 1506 offerin
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public 105,200,008 shares in ¢he ithirteenth defendant
company at a prace cf $U.cu pex share. At the time of this
of fer the first céefendant owned (on behalf cf the Government
of Jamaica) 53.1 per cent and the second cefendant 3% per cent
of the issued shares of the thirteenth defencant. The
application list for this public offer of shares opened on the
zlst September, L9385 and closed on the 2&th September, 19&8.
Shortly after the alloument of shares they were listed on the
Jamaica stock Exchange. &t the time of offer, the thirteenth
defendant was actively contemplating the acguisition of two
sites one at Washington Eoulevard and the other at rewport
West in St. Andrew. Both sites "came closest (o meeting the
ideal requirements for the company's coencept of ctelephone
service centres.” The managemeni team of the JTC had entered
into discussions with the owners oi the sites, Commercial
Development Limited which was wholly owned by Industrial
Commercial Development Limited {(ICD), a public company whose
shares are listed on che Jamaica Stock gSxchange, for the
purchase of che sites. The cwners asked $54 ikillion net cf
all legal and transfer costs. The tean oiffered $43.9 Milliocn
net. The negotiatione continued and the Board¢ of the JTC
was asked to zpprove of the purchase of the wwo properties at
a figure not exceeaing $4v Mrllion net with the buyer being
responsible for all {ransfer coscs. On z4th Octobex, 150%
about 10.30 a.m the Directors of JTC considered the submissions
of the negotiating keam and unanimously approved the purchase
of the sites at Hewport West and washington Boulevard for
a maximum net price of $49% Million. at about 2:00 p.m the
same day the boa:d of Directess of the thirteenth defendant
met and ratified the decision taken by the Board of Directors
of J9C to purchase the two sites.

The Plaintiffs alleged that the siies were purchased

at. a gross over-value and that this was probably influenced
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by the twelfth defendant, Mr, Mayer Matalon, the Chairman
of ihe Beard of Directcorss of JTC arnd TOu who was also a share-
holder and director of the vendor Development Properties
Limited, and industirial Commercial Development.

The Hewport Wesi property compiised some 16 acres and
the asiing price was $35.0¢ per sguare foct, that is, approxi-
mately $24.5 Million net. “he site &t Washington Soulevard

<

was six acres, the asking price was {48 pewr square foot or
approximately $12.5 Million net. This was the position when
consideration of the acguision of the sites was in progress
in August i%d¢. In a letter tc the Chairman of the Boaxd of
Directors of JY¢ dGated October 11; 1988; lr. deville Saddlerx,
senior Director, pointed out that the asking price of $1z.5
Million net for ihe Washington Boulevard site referred to the

land only "and that the cost of building (thereon) 74,000

square feet would be in the order of $10.0 #illion. This would

0

6.0C per sguare

G

Give a composite asking price of lhe order of
foot (Land and building)." It is accepted that there was a
substantial building on the Washington Boulevard site. The
votal asking price for the two sites was thus 524.5 plus
$22.5 - = $47 Million net.

In accordence with the accepted practices, valuations
werc ha< froia chiree independent and gualified valuators. They
gave these valuations:

Newport Washington

Valuator Dazce West soulevarad Total
Langford & Brown 7. 5.68 2aim 25m 4S%m
C.D Alexander & Ceo. <21. 9.8% 1u.5m 27.im 37.om
Lllison Pitter & Co +4..U0.008 17 .4m PN 3i.4m

it was against cthis background that the negotiations for the
acquisition of the sites were conducted and concluded in
December 19%¢& for a price of $4¢ Miilion net.

The original writ daced 29th March, 1909 had but twelve

defendants the thirteenth defendant was added to the writ
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approximately one year late:r on the 25th March, 1950. The parti-
«culars grounding the derivative action are conta%ped in paragraphs
17 - 23 of the amended statement of claim. Paragraphs I7 and

16 claim that the defendants cne to twelve caused the thirteenth
defendant /appellant to purchase the sites for $46%,109,200

which was grossly in excess of the true marizet value. Ths other
paragraphs aver:

“i9. The First and Second Defendants,
the Director Defendants and the
Twelfth Defendant all fully well
Knew that the land was net worth
or valued at the price paid for
it or did not honestly believe
that it was or acted in reckless
disvegard of whether it was or
was not and conspired together
to have the company purchase the
said land at a grossly inflated
price as a consequence whereof
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited has suffered considerable
loss and damage.

PARTICULARSES

Difference between contract
pPrice and marxet price = $3U,000,0006.0¢ (Zstimated)

Pucrchaser's costs of
transfer = 3,000,000.C60 (Estimated)

rurchasers Attocney’s
fees 1,600,¢Cu.00 (Bstimated)

$34,000,000.00

"20. The purchase of the properties
and at the price aforesaid is
ulitra vires the cbjects of the
Memorandum of Association of
Yelecommunicatiions of Jamaica
Limited particularly insofar as
it is expressly declared therein
that the company shall carry on
its business in accordance with
commercial principles which were
manifestly absent in the said
purchase and also insofar as the
properiies were nct necessary
for, cannot be conveniently used
with and cannot enhance the value
of any other property of the
company .
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“21. Tne aforesaid conduci of the
First and second Derendants,
of the Directors Defencants and <. _
the wwelfth Defendant completely
disregarded the interest of
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited anda of the Plaintiffs
and constituted oppressive and
unceonscionaple conduct towards
them,

Y22. Further and/o¢ in the alternative
tihe said less and damage arising
from iLhe purchase of the proper-
ties at a gressly inflated price
was caused by the negligence of
the Defencant Directors and of
the Twelfth Defendant.

PARTICULARGE

(1) Failing to pay a reasonable
price or to forego the
purchase and look for move
reasonably priced land,

(ii) Failing to obtain any or an
adequate number of professional
valuations of the properties;

(1ii) DAlternatively, disregarding or
failing to rely cn or cn the
majoricy c¢f the professional
valuations obtained;

(iv) Relying on their own uninformed
valuaticns of the propertiss or
on their own assumptions as to
the proper price to be paid for
rt.

“23. The First and Sccond Defendants
by their absolute control over
the votes of Telccommunications
of Jamaica Limited and through
the Defendanc Director and the
Twelfth Defendant who are appointed
by them complelely overwhelm the
Plaintiffs and have refused and/or
threater to refuse to pursue this
action against themselves ard
their Directors in that company's
name."

The Summons of the thirteenth defendant appellant
seeking to have the court determine as a preliminary issue
the right of the plaintiff to maintain the derivative action

is grounded in Supveme Court Practice (White Book) 19&5 0.15/12/5:
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"#there plaintiffs sue as representative
plaintiffs in a minority sharsholders
or derivative action, the court ought
Lo determine, as a preliminary issue,;
whether they are entitled so tc sue

ancd whether the company was in fact
under the control of those alleged to
have practised 2 fraud on it before

the court proceeced to hear the main
derivative action icself.”

This order follows Prudential Assurance Co. Lid. v. Wiewman

3

(

industries Lid. (No. 2} 1922 1 ALL ER 354 at 355. There the

Court of Appeal held:

(1) *Although the proper plaintiff in
an action in respect of a wrong
done to & company was prima facie
the company itself, ezcepiionally
a mincrity shareholder could bring
a derivative action where the
vrong cone to the company amounted
to fraud andé the wrongdoers were
themselves in control of the company
and thus able to prevent the company
from suing; but when such an action
was brought by a minority shacehoclder
the qguestion whether in fact the
company was controlled by the alleged
wrongdoers should first be determined
before the derivative action itself
was allowed to proceed.”

I accept the authority of Prucential v, Iewman (supra) as

relevant and applicable to thcse proceedings. The rationale for
this procedure is that "to allow ihe derivative action te
proceed without determiring the preliminary issue is an approdach

which defeats the whole purpose of Lhe zpule in Foss v. Harbottle

(1543) Z Hare 4vl and sanctions the very mischief which the
rule was designed to prevent." Bdwards, J. had thereforc tc
determine on the summons brought by the chirteenth defendant
appellant whether the derivative action should be zllowed to
proceed. He rescolved the issues, thus:

“"The guestion is whether the Plaintiffs
ara entitled to continue this matter.

I come to the conclusicn with a great
deal of difficuliy, that at this stage.
a yuestion of fraud is alleged by the
Plaintiffs. They should be entiiled

to maintain a derivative aciion for

the benefit of the Thirteenth Defendant.



A1l we have here are allegacions.

£ "hins that it would come within
Line exception to the rule in FOSS
V. HARBOTTLE. The question of
fraud not uluvia vires should be
Gealt wiith propesly ac a trial.
This matter should piroceed to trial
so that the matter can be resolved.
Fraud is alleged; all directors con-~
cesned are involved as parties to
the action.®

Barlier in his Zjudgment he had said:
"l spent some time agonising and
founu first that the purchase of the
land was noc ultca vires ...."
“he learned judge here disposed of the claim that *he
acts done were ultra vircs the company. Ille found that they
were intra vices and accordingly the case did not fall within

this exception to the rule in Foss v. Larboctle.

For the plainiifis/respondents to succeed there mustc
ue evidence which on the balance of probabilities establishes
that this case falls within the exceptlions to the rule in ¥Foss

V. Harbettle. The evidence must show that fraud has been com-

initted, and that the fraudsters are in control of the company
making the company impotent to aci in its own protection and
therefore the minority needed the preteccion of the court to

o act on behslf of the company. Basic tc fraud must be
evidence that there has beern yain by those in control, the
direct result of the frauduleni act complained of. ©On the
evidence the chairman of J7TC Limited, Mr. Matalon, attended the
meeting of that company on 24th October,; 1513,

When the subject of ithe acguisition of the iands came
to be considered and decision tahen ho declared his interest,
withdrew from the meecing and took no part in the discussion
and decision. Similarly at the meeiing of the Soard of
Directors of ithe thirteentl: defendant which ratified the
decision te acquize the lands, he declared his interest, with-

drew from the mecting and had nothing to ¢o with the delilerations,



This: action -on his part was consonant with  ethics anda with the
Erticles of hssociation and cannot be faulted.

The contract of sale was entered into by two competent
and capable parties very experienced in the commexcial field.
The terms of the agreement c¢o not viclate the practice in that

field. The court will not interfere in the internal management

v

of a company when the persons appointed to govern the affairs of
the company act within the bounds of propriety. The board of

Directors by Ariicle &l is the body charged with ihe management

O
4

the Company.

There was before the court below no prima facie evidence
of fraud to support a derivative action and Ldwards, J. fell
in error when he accepted "a veiled suggesticn of fraud" based on
allegacions of fraud unsupported by svicence, s sufficient to
rule that the mattier should proceed to trial.

Overriding these considerations there is a basic defect
in the pleadings. Section 170 {1) of the Civil Procedure Code
Law requires:;

"In all cases in which the party pleading
relies on any misrepresentacion, fiaud
breach of trust, wilful default or undue
influence, and in all other cases in
which particulars may be necessary

beyond such as are exemplified in the
Forms aforesaid, particulars {with dates
and items if necessary) shall be stated
in the pleading.”

The pleadings fail to comply with the reqguirements of
this section so or the threshold the plaintiffs actien in this
respect is barred.

The affidavit evidence which was before Edwards, J. was
also before us and was the basis of detailed submissions and
references. Ve were invited to invcke the power contained in
sule 18 {3) of the Rules of the Court of Appeal in the follow-

ing words:



